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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: This is the

          3  first official Committee hearing in the Red Room. It

          4  is called the Red Room I guess because of the

          5  draperies. I have just gone into a long explanation

          6  about why we are in the Red Room, and one of the

          7  reasons is that we have a general Council meeting on

          8  the 29th of June and then we start the summer, and

          9  so there are certain bills that need to get passed,

         10  and other bills that might face possible veto from

         11  the Mayor that would then be overridden by the

         12  Council, but because it is the summer, the Council

         13  is concerned that people would be away and they

         14  wouldn't have enough votes to override, so that is

         15  one of the reasons that we are once again amending

         16  Local Law 45, which affects family day care, which I

         17  had hoped we would have a new bill that set

         18  standards for family day care and provided for

         19  inspections of family day care, and that of course

         20  ties into the whole question of child care,

         21  especially with the Welfare Reform Act and the WEP

         22  programs -- Welfare To Work Program.

         23                 But we have been unable to negotiate

         24  a bill that satisfied both us and the Mayor and

         25  therefore it would potentially be subject to veto
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          2  and then we would be afraid of not overriding, and

          3  so we have to amend this, which sunset last June,

          4  and now this will be I think the third time we are

          5  amending it in our efforts to continue some

          6  regulations of family day care.

          7                 Are there any questions from the

          8  Committee?

          9                 Council Member Abel has to visit a

         10  filtration plant in Greenberg, New York. So, does

         11  anybody have any questions about this?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I don't want

         13  anyone in the group to think I am an echo of Ronnie

         14  Eldridge, but I want to clarify that in this case I

         15  am. And I also want to clarify that it doesn't mean

         16  that I think exactly like Councilwoman Eldridge, but

         17  a lot of times we do, and in this case I do agree

         18  with her completely that this is outrageous, and

         19  that we continue to postpone this process, and in my

         20  opinion totally unnecessarily, hurting the children

         21  of our community who are not going to get

         22  accessibility. And I think it is wrong and I think

         23  it is absolutely outrageous that we continue this

         24  process in the way that has been done.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you.
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          2                 We have been joined by Jim Oddo,

          3  Margarita Lopez. This is our Counsel, Deirdre

          4  Feerick, Mike Abel and Christine Quinn.

          5                 Does anybody else have a comment?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I just want to

          7  apologize that I might be a little bit in and out of

          8  this hearing just because I have a hearing upstairs

          9  on a bill that relates to lead paint poisoning, so I

         10  want to try to be at both. I just wanted to let

         11  people know that.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: All right. So,

         13  I think we will take a vote now.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Eldridge.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Lopez.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Quinn.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Abel.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: Aye.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Oddo.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: The vote stands

         25  at five in the affirmative, none in the negative
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          2  with no abstentions.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Okay. We just

          4  voted five in the affirmative and we are going to

          5  hold the vote open because we have another member

          6  who wanted to come, Helen Marshall.

          7                 The hearing today is a hearing on

          8  "The Impact of Medicaid Policies on Mothers and

          9  Their Children." The reason we are having the

         10  hearing in the Women's Committee, through the

         11  blessings of the General Welfare Committee, is that

         12  we recently had two occasions where young women

         13  nursing their babies relate that they were denied

         14  care because they didn't have Medicaid cards for the

         15  babies, and both of those babies unfortunately died.

         16  They were nursing mothers.

         17                 And we looked at these cases and we

         18  looked at all of the different background and the

         19  different agencies and different participants in the

         20  process of having healthy babies and we know that

         21  there are lots of gaps, that there are in fact rules

         22  that aren't enforced, there are things that should

         23  have happened but didn't happen, but we are

         24  concentrating today basically on this topic, and I

         25  think when we say Medicaid policies we are basically
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          2  talking about the quality of care for poor women and

          3  their children.

          4                 And exceedingly complicated and

          5  painful, these two occurrences were very painful and

          6  very complicated, and one of the cases went to

          7  trial, and the young woman was convicted of criminal

          8  negligence and faces a jail sentence. And it is I

          9  think in our interest that every baby be protected

         10  and that every mother be instructed and assisted.

         11                 So, I hope that we will be able to

         12  elicit from HRA and some of the people who are here

         13  today what exactly the process is, where is the

         14  failure? Is it the provider who doesn't understand

         15  the rules? What are the rules, and also discuss a

         16  little bit the proposed bill in Albany that was

         17  passed by the Assembly that seemed to me repeats

         18  what is already the regulation which is a baby, an

         19  infant should be already covered if the mother is a

         20  Medicaid recipient.

         21                 So with that in mind, I think we will

         22  start to hear some testimony. We are going to start

         23  with HRA. How many people are you going to have? It

         24  would be nice if they could sit over by the end.

         25                 I am going to call on Iris Hernandez.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          3  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Good afternoon, Council Members,

          4  Ronnie Eldridge and Council Members of the Women's

          5  Issues Committee.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Good afternoon.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          8  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: My name is Iris

          9  Jimenez-Hernandez, I am the Executive Deputy

         10  Commissioner for the Medical Assistance Program. I

         11  am happy to be here today to answer questions

         12  submitted by this Committee on Medicaid policies and

         13  how they affect women and their children.

         14                 In an effort to ensure that we

         15  respond to the issues you have raised, my testimony

         16  will respond to the questions submitted to us;

         17  however, I will be happy to answer additional

         18  questions that you may have when I have completed my

         19  testimony.

         20                 The first question that was submitted

         21  to us was, is the application for Medicaid part of a

         22  joint application with other forms of public

         23  assistance listed on the form? That was the way the

         24  question was posed to us.

         25                 The response is yes. It has always
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          2  been the case. An applicant, however, must elect to

          3  choose among the programs for which he or she wants

          4  to apply. So there are applications for the three

          5  entitlements, but the individual has to indicate for

          6  which one they are applying.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And just for

          8  the record, the three entitlements are?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         10  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Food stamps, Medicaid and cash

         11  assistance.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: You expressed a

         13  little something about the way we phrased the

         14  questions, how would you phrase the questions? I

         15  mean, it is all right?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         17  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE:  We are not

         19  losing some information?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         21  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: No.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Okay.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Can I make some

         24  clarifications?

         25                 The application has different boxes
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          2  in the top, it is divided. The person can choose to

          3  apply for one or for all, but they have to mark all

          4  of them if they want all of them. If they don't,

          5  they are only applying for one.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          7  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: If they mark

          9  Medicaid, only Medicaid. If they mark only food

         10  stamps, it is food stamps only.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         12  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: They have to

         14  mark all of them in order to apply for the whole

         15  thing.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Now, is this

         17  the question that the feds were looking into when

         18  they came here, or the Department of Agriculture?

         19  Why do you have to do that? If you are eligible for

         20  food stamps, you are automatically eligible for

         21  Medicaid, and you are eligible for cash assistance?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         23  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: No.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: No?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER
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          2  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: No.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Not

          4  necessarily.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          6  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: There is always the expectation

          7  that the individual will indicate to us what they

          8  are applying for. I mean that is not uncommon. And

          9  so, you know, you asked the question do you apply

         10  for all three using one form? And the answer is yes.

         11  You indicate which one of the programs you are

         12  applying for. But that is not different from what

         13  historically has been the case.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Now, I am very

         15  familiar, I used to be a social worker, when

         16  somebody applies for Medicaid, and the criteria to

         17  apply for Medicaid is to make that person also

         18  qualified for food stamps and for cash assistance,

         19  do you automatically tell the people that they

         20  qualify for the three, or you don't?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         22  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Did the person indicate that they

         23  wanted to apply for three programs?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: No. I am going

         25  to ask the question again.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          3  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Okay.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: If the person

          5  goes to your center and applies just on Medicaid,

          6  just Medicaid.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          8  JIMINEZ-HERNANDEZ: At a Medicaid only center?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: No. Let's say

         10  he goes to a center for everything, and they apply

         11  only for Medicaid, only mark Medicaid and that's it,

         12  when a person does that, and then they go to the

         13  interview and they bring their documentation, and

         14  you find out this person is qualified not just for

         15  Medicaid, but is qualified for the other two, do you

         16  also give them that automatically?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         18  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: If the person indicates they are

         19  applying for Medicaid?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Do you inform

         21  them that they are qualified for the other two?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         23  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: There are documents and packets

         24  that we give to all individuals that are seeking

         25  assistance that describe, you know, the process of
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          2  application and gives them information about the

          3  other programs, and then the individual can make

          4  decisions about whether they want to apply for any

          5  of the other ones.

          6                 If a person comes to a Medicaid

          7  office and indicates that they are applying for

          8  Medicaid, we make them eligible for Medicaid.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: You don't go

         10  into the other two directions, even knowing that

         11  they qualified for those other two?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         13  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: No. But as I said, there is

         14  information that is offered as general information

         15  as part of a packet. A person applies, there is a

         16  packet that is given to them and there is general

         17  information about other programs in that packet.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         20  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Should I go on?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Yes.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         23  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Please explain the process for

         24  Medicaid applications?

         25                 A person may apply for Medicaid when
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          2  he or she applies for cash assistance, as has always

          3  been the case. To do this an applicant must go to a

          4  job income support center and check the box on the

          5  application form that she or he also wants Medicaid.

          6  A person may apply for Medicaid only at one of the

          7  19 Medicaid offices located throughout the City.

          8                 The application for Medicaid requires

          9  a face-to-face interview. On the first day that an

         10  applicant comes to a Medicaid Office, she or he will

         11  be pre-screened, that is the worker will review with

         12  her the application form and what documentation is

         13  necessary to establish eligibility.

         14                 The application is registered in the

         15  Statewide Welfare Management System at the

         16  prescreening interview and an appointment for a full

         17  face-to-face eligibility interview is scheduled.

         18                 When the applicant returns for the

         19  scheduled interview, they are expected to bring the

         20  documentation indicated at the prescreening

         21  interview, including whether there are any

         22  outstanding medical bills within the last three

         23  months prior to application.

         24                 If all the information is complete,

         25  the worker completes the budget for the case and
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          2  makes the eligibility decision.

          3                 In New York City we have trained

          4  organizations as certified Medicaid prescreeners.

          5  Prenatal Care Assistance Program providers and

          6  hospitals constitute a significant portion of these

          7  organizations.

          8                 These organizations assist the client

          9  in completing the Medicaid applications and submit

         10  the application on her behalf. Persons who are

         11  assisted in this way do not have to appear at a

         12  Medicaid Office to apply, because we have delegated

         13  the face-to-face interview to the trained

         14  prescreener.

         15                 Your next question --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Wait a minute,

         17  can I just ask a question?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         19  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: How much later

         21  after the first application is the scheduled

         22  interview? What is the lapse of time?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         24  JIMINEZ-HERNANDEZ: It depends. I mean, it could be

         25  as little as the very next day or five days later.
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          2                 "What happens when a pregnant mother

          3  applies for food stamps and/or cash assistance at

          4  the same time as applying for Medicaid?"

          5                 When an individual applies for cash

          6  assistance at a Job Center or an Income Support

          7  Center, he or she is afforded the opportunity to be

          8  considered for other assistance, such as food stamps

          9  and Medicaid, as part of the same application.

         10                 Eligibility for all three programs is

         11  considered simultaneously, although the eligibility

         12  criteria vary for each program.

         13                 Emergency situations such as having

         14  no food are addressed immediately prior to any

         15  eligibility determination.

         16                 Workers evaluate the individual's

         17  eligibility for each program separately.

         18                 Your next question was: "If a

         19  pregnant woman/mother is denied food stamps and/or

         20  cash assistance, what happens to the Medicaid

         21  application?

         22                 In some cases people denied

         23  eligibility for cash assistance are still eligible

         24  for Medicaid or food stamps.

         25                 Workers at Job Centers who have
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          2  denied a case for cash assistance evaluate whether

          3  the case is eligible for Medicaid and food stamps.

          4                 If the applicant is potentially

          5  eligible for Medicaid, the documents submitted and

          6  the application for eligibility are forwarded to a

          7  Medicaid worker outstationed at the Job Center which

          8  then process the application for Medicaid only. If

          9  the application was made at an income support

         10  center, the document submitted and the application

         11  for eligibility are forwarded to a central location

         12  where it is processed for Medicaid only.

         13                 Your next question was, "Is the

         14  application reviewed for Medicaid and food stamps

         15  and/or cash benefits simultaneously, or is there an

         16  order to what programs are reviewed first?

         17                 The response is that eligibility is

         18  reviewed during the same time frames, although

         19  emergencies obviously are addressed immediately.

         20                 And then your last question was, "At

         21  what step in the process will a Medicaid Card be

         22  issued?"

         23                 In all instances a Medicaid card is

         24  mailed after the applicant has been found eligible

         25  and that decision has been successfully data entered
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          2  into the welfare management system. The client

          3  generally receives the card in less than five days.

          4                 Those were the questions that had

          5  been submitted to us, but obviously we are prepared

          6  to answer any additional questions that you may

          7  have. And just for your information, to my right is

          8  Deputy Commissioner Seth Diamond from the

          9  Family Independents Administration, and Lisa

         10  Fitzpatrick, Family Independents Administration.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: The Family

         12  what? Independents?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND:

         14  Independents.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And what is

         16  that? What was that formerly?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND:

         18  Formerly? It is the area that oversees all of the

         19  public assistance.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         21  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Income support programs, I think

         22  it was referred to.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: In the past

         24  there used to be a practice, I don't know if it has

         25  been changed, in which you issue an emergency card
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          2  that was a temporary one until the permanent one

          3  came; is that still in place?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          5  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: If an individual comes to us and

          6  we find them eligible for Medicaid, fully eligible

          7  for Medicaid, and that individual indicates that

          8  they need -- I will use as an illustration, to fill

          9  a prescription, one of two things can occur:

         10                 Typically what happens as a matter of

         11  practice is that we can either make contact with a

         12  pharmacy, and the pharmacy will call us and we will

         13  tell them we will establish eligibility; or, and it

         14  is perfectly acceptable, we can give that card, what

         15  we call "the paper card". It is in limited use,

         16  because, quite frankly, you know, very few people

         17  come to us and indicate that they have a situation

         18  where it warrants us issuing that since the Medicaid

         19  card, as I have just stated, typically is received

         20  within three to five days. But if it is necessary,

         21  we still issue that card, both in the Medicaid only

         22  offices, as well as the Income Support and Job

         23  Centers.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

         25                 You say in New York City we have
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          2  trained organizations and certified Medicaid

          3  prescreeners, the PCAP programs in the hospitals and

          4  providers.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          6  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: What kind of

          8  oversight do you have with those agencies about how

          9  they are doing? What is the program --

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         11  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: We train them, we certify them,

         12  and as they submit applications to us, we can gauge

         13  and evaluate the accuracy of the information that

         14  they are giving to us.

         15                 As a matter of fact, a common

         16  practice is, if there is a particular organization

         17  that we find is not, you know, we are receiving a

         18  lot of applications facilitated by them and which

         19  many people have to be ultimately denied because

         20  they are not completing the application correctly,

         21  we will ask that organization to come back in and we

         22  will train their staff again.

         23                 It is a pretty common practice. We

         24  train over 1,000 organizations annually in New York

         25  City.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So that anybody

          3  who goes to any of these organizations and wants to

          4  apply for assistance, nobody is denied the

          5  opportunity to apply for assistance?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          7  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Absolutely not.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: An application

          9  is filled out by everybody?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         11  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Absolutely.

         12                 But ultimately the application comes

         13  to us and then we have to review it for eligibility.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: At the Medicaid

         15  office, they also can then check the other two

         16  boxes?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         18  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: At the medical assistance only

         19  offices, the 19 that are referred to in the

         20  testimony, those are MA only offices. So, they come

         21  to us and they are applying for Medicaid, okay?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And nobody

         23  there tells them that if they want --

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         25  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: If someone comes to our Medicaid
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          2  office and is applying for Medicaid but also

          3  indicates, checks off a box that says that they want

          4  food stamps, we will say to them where they should

          5  go and apply for the food stamp program, and we will

          6  make that referral and facilitate that. But we do

          7  not establish food stamps, for instance,

          8  eligibility, at a Medicaid only office.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: May I know why

         10  you have separated the applications in that manner?

         11  In that fashion?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         13  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: The processing of the

         14  application.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Why have you

         16  separated the process of Medicaid from the process

         17  of food stamps and cash assistance?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         19  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Applying for that. You know, some

         20  of it is very practical. The eligibility criteria

         21  for Medicaid is complicated. You can be applying for

         22  nursing home care, you can be applying for home care

         23  services, you can be applying for Medicaid for your

         24  children, you can have a pregnant woman applying, it

         25  is a very complex theory of eligibility. So, in
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          2  addition to just having the welfare management

          3  system of the state and the court, a system in which

          4  you can have a generic worker at a Medicaid office

          5  that, you know, can establish eligibility for the

          6  other programs. WMS is just not designed that way.

          7                 In addition to that reality, the

          8  complexity of the programs are such that in order to

          9  train an individual to understand not only the

         10  complexities of MPA eligibility but Medicaid and

         11  cash, quite frankly, in a program the size of New

         12  York City, would be very difficult then to monitor

         13  and to ensure that individuals would have a clear

         14  understanding of all of those eligibility processes.

         15                 I mean that is a practical

         16  organization. And the other one is the WMS system

         17  doesn't support it any other way. There is no such

         18  thing as a generic system in WMS that would allow us

         19  to establish eligibility for all of the programs.

         20                 Now, there is a plan, and we have

         21  been collaborating with the state in trying to

         22  modify WMS, to allow us to do that, but it is not

         23  here. And quite frankly, in the design that is

         24  envisioned, it will prompt a worker through a series

         25  of questions and create a system that is policy
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          2  correct so that we reduce the potential for

          3  confusion and error on the part of the staff.

          4                 So, when we are successful in

          5  collaborating with the state in the redesign of WMS,

          6  it will be a system that is very different from the

          7  one that we use now, in that it will prompt workers

          8  through the eligibility process, reducing the margin

          9  of error, and that is when you can then establish

         10  generic-type offices.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: You may know

         12  this, I was just going to ask you, that separating

         13  this assistance from the cash assistance may have

         14  something to do with the particular care that this

         15  is for, medical care that has characteristics of

         16  possible emergency situations?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         18  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: I think that in New York City we

         19  are very fortunate in that-- I mean, first I think

         20  you have to separate Medicaid as an insurer for the

         21  poor from care and care delivery, which is what you

         22  just suggested.

         23                 In New York City we have a vast

         24  public hospital system, we have a huge voluntary

         25  hospital system. We have laws that say that you
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          2  can't turn someone away, and licensed medical

          3  organizations cannot, if someone presents with an

          4  acute emergency, turn someone away. That is separate

          5  and apart from establishing eligibility for an

          6  insurance for the poor, which is very important. But

          7  I separate those two issues and the question that

          8  you have raised, whether or not the fact that WMS

          9  does not allow us to support the three programs has

         10  anything to do with that particular access issue, I

         11  doubt it. I mean, I don't think so. I really don't.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But your

         13  separation from care from eligibility is basically

         14  what we are talking about today. Because these were

         15  cases where they were denied care and with that

         16  question of eligibility, but we will come back to

         17  that.

         18                 How old is the WMS system?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         20  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Oh, gosh. I haven't been around

         21  long enough to know, but I would say I have been

         22  here at least -- I have been here seven years, so it

         23  is at least 15 years.

         24                 By design by MIS standards it is an

         25  antiquated, not very friendly main frame system.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And it is the

          3  state that is in control over it?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          5  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So it is

          7  designed at the time we have AFDC and we haven't

          8  adopted at all the new methods.

          9                 We understand the training question,

         10  that it is hard to train people to understand the

         11  eligibility of all three things, but why can't you

         12  have representatives of all three things at the same

         13  center?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         15  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Well, certainly in the job

         16  centers we now have MA only staff that are

         17  co-located at job centers.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: What is MA?

         19  What do you mean MA?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         21  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Staff that understand the

         22  eligibility for the medical assistance program.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: For the whole

         24  thing.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER
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          2  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Right. Are now co-located at

          3  income support centers and job -- well, they will be

          4  phased in at all job centers.

          5                 And, you know, so that is the first

          6  step in that direction.

          7                 I don't know if there is -- I think

          8  there is a similar proposal for the MPA food stamp

          9  staff to also be co-located at job centers. In that

         10  regard we are reaching what you have just described,

         11  one location and with people, if they are there and

         12  want to apply for all three programs, you could

         13  establish eligibility while they are there.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: In your

         15  testimony on page two, the bottom paragraph, last

         16  statement, "The application for Medicaid requires a

         17  face-to-face interview. On the first day that an

         18  applicant comes to a Medicaid office, she will be

         19  prescreened; that is, a worker will review with her,

         20  the application form and what documentation is

         21  necessary to establish eligibility." At the time

         22  that these workers are doing this process, they are

         23  doing the process, they are engaging in that job,

         24  that they have to know when they look at that

         25  application that this person qualifies for food
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          2  stamps, and qualified for cash assistance. They have

          3  to.

          4                 If they are part of this system, they

          5  have to. If they work for this particular dependency

          6  of government, they have to know that. Then my

          7  question is, if this happened no matter what, that

          8  these workers are instructed to be informed

          9  verbally, not through the documents that are put in

         10  there, the reason that you described before, not

         11  through that process, that they are instructed by

         12  you, the agency, to notify this individual, and tell

         13  them I want to call your attention to the fact that

         14  you may qualify also for food stamps and cash

         15  assistance; does that happen that that is a policy?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         17  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Are you asking me if that is the

         18  policy, or are you asking me should we consider it

         19  as a policy?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: No. I am asking

         21  if it is a policy now.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         23  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Right. The policy, as I stated

         24  earlier, was if someone goes to a medical assistance

         25  office, is applying only for medical assistance,
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          2  while there may be documents available for that

          3  individual to review, no, there isn't a policy that

          4  says that the individual worker is going to say you

          5  are also eligible for food stamps and you should go

          6  to such and such an office. Not if the individual

          7  has not indicated that they are seeking --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: That policy

          9  does not exist.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         11  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Not in the Medical Assistance

         12  Program, absolutely not.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Why not?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         15  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Because the individual is clearly

         16  applying, and has made the decision to come and

         17  apply for Medicaid. They have indicated so in a

         18  form, and in addition to that, the individual is

         19  being offered information about these other

         20  programs. So, we are not going to presume to say to

         21  the individual, you haven't indicated that you are

         22  interested in any of this, but we just want you to

         23  know that in the event you may be, you might qualify

         24  for it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: What's wrong
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          2  with that?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Suppose that

          4  the person does not know how to read and write,

          5  suppose that. Suppose that all of the documents that

          6  you have there, and incidently, when I worked in

          7  that field a lot of people didn't know how to write

          8  and read, even Spanish or any other language, you

          9  give them all the documentation and the

         10  documentation is there in writing but they don't

         11  read, suppose that they don't, what do you do with

         12  those cases?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         14  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: If an individual comes to our

         15  office alone, and they want to apply for Medicaid,

         16  they do not know how to read, our staff walks that

         17  individual through the requirements of what they

         18  have to complete, and they facilitate the completion

         19  of the application - if the individual indicates

         20  that they want Medicaid, we establish the

         21  eligibility for Medicaid and we tell them what they

         22  need for that.

         23                 We do not, however, say, there is a

         24  possibility, for a variety of reasons, at that point

         25  you may not know, we may not have sufficient
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          2  documentation, and so rather than indicate to

          3  someone perhaps erroneously that they may be

          4  eligible for two other programs, we simply establish

          5  the eligibility for the program they are applying

          6  for, but ensure that there is information available

          7  to them where they can seek additional information

          8  about the other programs. That is the current

          9  policy.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: On the last

         12  page, on the next to last page, we ask you a

         13  question: "If a pregnant woman/mother is denied food

         14  stamps and/or cash assistance, what happens to the

         15  Medicaid application?"

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         17  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And then you

         19  say, "In some cases people denied eligibility for

         20  cash assistance are still eligible for Medicaid or

         21  food stamps. Workers at Job Centers who have denied

         22  a case for cash assistance evaluate whether the case

         23  is eligible for Medicaid and food stamps." Then the

         24  documents are used, but in a way it is the reverse.

         25  I don't understand why that person had to check the
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          2  three boxes? I mean, why is that? To discourage

          3  applications for the other things?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          5  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: No. It is to conform with the

          6  requirements and the request of the client. If the

          7  client indicated that they want --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But the client

          9  may not understand or fully know what all the stuff

         10  is. You are assuming that every client that comes in

         11  is totally knowledgeable.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         13  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Council Member, we assume that

         14  the individual checks off or indicates what they are

         15  applying for.

         16                 We don't assume that they don't

         17  understand it, you are absolutely right. We assume

         18  that they do understand what they are seeking and

         19  that they make that information available to us.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: What is the

         21  philosophy behind assuming a self-determination?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         23  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Is that a question?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Yes.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER
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          2  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: I think the philosophy is that an

          3  individual comes to apply for services that he or

          4  she is fully knowledgeable of what their family

          5  circumstance is and what they need, and if they

          6  indicate that they need medical assistance, we make

          7  them eligible for that. We don't presume that they

          8  want --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: If it is a

         10  family that is in need of help, there is no such

         11  thing as that anymore? You have to know what you are

         12  in need of specifically? You can't be ignorant of

         13  the benefits. You have to be fully aware of what

         14  happens, right?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         16  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: You have to know what you want.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Somebody might

         18  not even know, it might be a surprise, but it would

         19  seem to me somebody might not even know that there

         20  is such a thing as food stamps. It could be,

         21  couldn't it?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         23  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: So the benefit of that is that we

         24  give them information, that they certainly can

         25  either take to someone or read it themselves and
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          2  then they can decide if they feel that they want to

          3  apply.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Even if they

          5  are only at a Medicaid --

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          7  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: There is a general packet and in

          8  it there is information about a variety of programs.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: If an applicant

         10  is a pregnant woman, and she is apply for food

         11  stamps and cash assistance at the same time that she

         12  is applying for Medicaid, or she is just applying

         13  for Medicaid, does anybody ask her if she has seen a

         14  doctor, and if she is receiving any prenatal care?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         16  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: For the most part if you are

         17  pregnant, you have to demonstrate true

         18  documentation. You have to certify that you are in

         19  fact pregnant. So through that process, you know,

         20  you have a letter from a physician, a gynecologist,

         21  a general practitioner says, you know, I affirm that

         22  this person is in fact pregnant. If they are clients

         23  of a prenatal care program --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Am I enlarging

         25  it or exaggerating if I think that there are people
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          2  who are pregnant who haven't been to a doctor, until

          3  they realize by the fourth month or so they are

          4  pregnant?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          6  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: If they came and applied for

          7  Medicaid and they want to be evaluated because they

          8  are pregnant?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: If they came

         10  and applied for food stamps, cash assistance.

         11  Suppose that she is pregnant and she comes in and

         12  she applies for food stamps and cash assistance --

         13  am I not understanding the population that comes to

         14  you? I mean, I may not be.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         16  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: In every case the person that is

         17  pregnant has --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Wait a minute.

         19  If it is a pregnant woman who comes in and says I

         20  need cash assistance and I want food stamps and

         21  doesn't check the Medicaid box, does somebody say to

         22  her, well, are you seeing a physician? Or are you

         23  doing something? Are you getting any care and don't

         24  you want to see if you are eligible for Medicaid and

         25  are you going any place?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: In other words,

          3  in a center where you apply for the three things,

          4  the woman is right there, she is pregnant, she asks

          5  you just for food stamps and for cash assistance.

          6  Obviously she is pregnant, she has a belly, does

          7  somebody say to her do you have medical coverage? Do

          8  you have medical care for that child?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: I think

         10  access to Medicaid, if they indicated cash and food

         11  stamps without indicating Medicaid would be a part

         12  of the interview, there would be a discussion as to

         13  why they have chosen not to apply for Medicaid. They

         14  would have a reason, whatever it might be, that they

         15  didn't want to apply and maybe if there was an error

         16  they could change that and continue to apply.

         17                 We also pay for, and this would also

         18  be another discussion point at the application,

         19  medical bills incurred prior to application to a

         20  certain point, so that part of the discussion at the

         21  application might be do you have prior medical

         22  expenses with which you need help with, and that

         23  would be something --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Suppose she

         25  says that she doesn't need help. Suppose she doesn't
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          2  have prior medical expenses because she had not been

          3  to a doctor. A lot of women get pregnant and they

          4  don't go to the doctor for, you know, seven months,

          5  eight months, and suppose that when they get to you

          6  with that belly, they cannot see a doctor, period,

          7  that's it, and they just go for food stamps and cash

          8  assistance; when they are in that process of the

          9  interview that you are asking, they are going to be

         10  asked do you have prior bills to pay? And she says

         11  no. They are going to be asked, have you seen a

         12  doctor? No. Then at the end of the answer process in

         13  which is no, no, no about medical care, still that

         14  your employees are told that they should offer

         15  Medicaid to this person or ask her, don't you think

         16  that you should apply for Medicaid?

         17                 You know, what I am trying to know

         18  affirmatively, if you take a position of opening

         19  Medicaid services to a woman who is obviously

         20  pregnant and in need of medical care? That is what I

         21  am trying to ask.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Well,

         23  again, I think it would be discussed, and as to

         24  understand why the person was not applying for

         25  Medicaid. If they said they didn't want it, then the
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          2  worker would not say he must apply. You know,

          3  ultimately it is up to the person to decide, but it

          4  would be a point of discussion.

          5                 Also we have a requirement that the

          6  person be medically verified, so that would indicate

          7  usually that they have seen a doctor at some point,

          8  and it could be a part of the discussion.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: They have to

         10  have a further verification if they are pregnant if

         11  they are just applying for Medicaid?

         12                 I mean, because that is a category

         13  for eligibility?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         15  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Yes, there is a separate program

         16  for, and the eligibility criteria is an expanded

         17  eligibility. So, yes, in every case --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But you could

         19  be covered by Medicaid and not have anybody tell you

         20  that you are part of an expanded program. If you

         21  were a woman who was in Medicaid before you became

         22  pregnant, where does the automatic change come in?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         24  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Oh, then you have Medicaid; is

         25  that what you are saying?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Yes.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          4  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: If the person has Medicaid then

          5  there is no need for any change in the program under

          6  those circumstances.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So do they

          8  become eligible for care when they go to an

          9  obstetrician; is that what happens?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         11  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: No, the expanded eligibility is

         12  to make someone eligible for Medicaid, they could

         13  have income above what is typically for Medicaid if

         14  they are pregnant. But if she already has Medicaid,

         15  it is irrelevant to her at that point.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So what is the

         17  process by which a newborn becomes able to obtain

         18  medical care?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         20  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: A woman delivers the baby, the

         21  hospital will notify us, and to a formal document

         22  that they submit to us, and we will make the child

         23  eligible by putting the demographic information of

         24  the birth, et cetera, and the mother onto the WMS

         25  system.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And then does

          3  that infant get a card?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          5  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And you issue

          7  the card?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          9  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Well, it goes into WMS and it is

         10  issued.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And then it has

         12  to come through the hospital?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         14  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: It could come from a hospital,

         15  the mother can come in and indicate, you know, I

         16  have delivered. We need verification that, you know,

         17  she delivered, the baby is here.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And then how

         19  long does it take to get the benefits or care after

         20  the birth? Or how long should it take?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         22  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Care or eligibility?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Care.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         25  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Care that she has delivered?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Presumably

          3  every baby that has delivered to a Medicaid woman

          4  who is covered by Medicaid is eligible.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          6  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Right. But the mother has to give

          7  us information so that we can put this information

          8  on --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Or the hospital

         10  can give you the information.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         12  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Or the hospital.

         13                 But we will accept that verification

         14  from a variety of sources. But your question was

         15  care, which is separate from that. I mean, a woman

         16  who has delivered at a hospital, you know, the child

         17  would be in hopefully a well baby nursery, et

         18  cetera, and that hospital gets paid, once this

         19  information is input into WMS, the hospital can bill

         20  for this delivery.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But the baby

         22  goes home after two days, and five days later it

         23  gets sick and the other takes the baby back to the

         24  hospital and then what happens? Or takes the baby to

         25  the provider, not the hospital. Like a local
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          2  provider, what happens?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          4  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: If the woman has a card, the

          5  presumption is that it will provide the care for

          6  that infant that has been delivered by someone who

          7  is Medicaid eligible.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: What kind of

          9  notification have you given to providers that that

         10  is what they are supposed to do?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         12  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: For instance, there are

         13  information embedded in the managed care contracts

         14  between the City and the managed care organizations.

         15  You know, there are, as I said, much broader laws

         16  that govern health care access in New York State

         17  that say if someone presents with an emergency, you

         18  shouldn't turn that individual away.

         19                 So, there are a variety of

         20  protections for consumers about if you present with

         21  an emergency condition at either a public hospital

         22  or a voluntary hospital.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But we now had

         24  two cases, one involved HIP center (phonetic) and

         25  one involved Methodist Hospital, where babies were
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          2  not treated. Did that elicit any kind of inquiry on

          3  the part of your agency?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          5  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And what is

          7  your response to that?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          9  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Well, obviously I should make the

         10  distinction that the oversight of hospitals and

         11  managed care organizations from a quality of care

         12  and access perspective is the purview of the State

         13  Department of Health.

         14                 However, both of these instances we

         15  did ask the State Department of Health to

         16  investigate these two situations. They conduct

         17  ongoing site visits of hospitals and a variety of

         18  health facilities in New York State as part of

         19  licensing, as part of quality of care and all the

         20  rest, and so it is their responsibility to

         21  investigate why these particular hospitals or

         22  managed care organizations would decline care for

         23  anyone who presents.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But it is your

         25  responsibility, it seems to me, to be sure that the
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          2  providers understand that they are supposed to

          3  provide the care. You are determining the

          4  eligibility, so you determine the eligibility of the

          5  infant by saying that either the hospital notifies

          6  you or a woman comes in to tell you that she has had

          7  the baby, and you issue the card or put on the

          8  whatever at WMS, the fact that that baby exists,

          9  that even though the regulation may be a mistake, it

         10  seems to me that you have got to be more assured

         11  that Methodist Hospital knows that the baby is

         12  covered by Medicare.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         14  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Two things. I am going to make

         15  the distinction between Medicaid eligibility and the

         16  requirement embedded in state law and licensing of

         17  facilities and a much more macro policy that says

         18  you don't turn away an individual who presents to

         19  you with an acute condition in an emergency room.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Neither of

         21  these people knew it was an acute condition.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         23  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: If a person presents at an

         24  emergency room, there is a health code --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But they didn't
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          2  go to the emergency room.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          4  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: So they came to a hospital --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Right.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          7  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: And they said I want to be seen.

          8  They went to a clinic, and when they evaluated the

          9  person, they did not feel that there was an

         10  emergency situation.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: No, I don't

         12  think that is true.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         14  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Okay.

         15                 So, I will go back to say that the

         16  distinction I am making between eligibility and --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: They weren't

         18  evaluated, I don't think. I think they said you are

         19  not eligible, you don't have a Medicaid card. You

         20  have to go some place to do this. You have to

         21  register your child, and one of them was given an

         22  address of a place to go to make an appointment, and

         23  so they finally got the child registered. There was

         24  no decision made, there was simply a ruling on

         25  eligibility.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Based on having

          3  or not having the Medicaid card.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So that raises

          5  the question, it seems to me, of the way the people

          6  you train are actually understanding what is

          7  happening.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          9  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Let me make a couple of

         10  distinctions. The people that we train to help as

         11  pre-screeners and the requirements for Medicaid

         12  eligibility and the notifications that are given

         13  women and to organizations about the requirement for

         14  a woman or a hospital or an organization to let us

         15  know that the child has been delivered is separate

         16  and apart from the situation of whether a health

         17  facility in New York City or New York State turns

         18  away an individual, those rules are embedded in much

         19  broader health code and state law for which the

         20  Medical Assistance Program has no responsibility or

         21  pressure. That is all I am saying.

         22                 While we may indicate to the state

         23  that we want them to investigate situations, we are

         24  not --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: I am not
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          2  talking about that. What I am saying is, if there

          3  are providers who don't understand -- a baby who is

          4  delivered to a woman who is on Medicaid is

          5  automatically -- is that baby not eligible?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          7  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Yes, but the woman -- the woman

          8  has Medicaid eligibility. In order for us to issue a

          9  card for the baby, the woman must come in and give

         10  us information.

         11                 Now, do Medicaid, do hospitals and

         12  facilities know that a woman who is eligible for

         13  Medicaid, the child is automatically eligible for

         14  Medicaid? In a variety of ways the State Department

         15  of Health has made health care facilities aware that

         16  that is the regulation in New York State.

         17                 All I am saying is that the Medical

         18  Assistance Program does not have direct control or

         19  oversight, ensuring that those hospitals or

         20  facilities are experienced in that. We do not go out

         21  and investigate that aspect of it. That is not

         22  within the purview or the responsibility of

         23  Medicaid, that's all I am saying.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But you train

         25  --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Can we go back

          3  for one minute? I just want to go one step back.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          5  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Okay.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: When a woman

          7  delivers a baby in the hospital, at the time that

          8  the woman delivered the baby in the hospital she has

          9  Medicaid. She delivered that baby on the Medicaid.

         10  Then does the hospital that delivered that baby have

         11  any responsibility under the regulations that you

         12  have of notifying Medicaid of this?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         14  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: The hospital will typically

         15  notify us because they want to establish eligibility

         16  for the baby, and in that regard they are going to

         17  get paid for the, you know, the nursery care and all

         18  of the care associated with that child.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Forgive me for

         20  asking you the question again, because you are very

         21  well qualified to answer.  I am asking you if the

         22  hospital has any responsibility to notify you that

         23  this baby just arrived, his name is Baby Margarita

         24  Lopez, and Baby Margarita Lopez now exists. Anyway,

         25  the baby just arrived, does the hospital have any
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          2  responsibility, administrative responsibility, any

          3  kind of responsibility to notify you that this baby

          4  is here and now there is a new person inside of this

          5  Medicaid account?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          7  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Not for Medicare. I mean,

          8  hospitals are required to give information to the

          9  City Department of Health, for instance, as part of

         10  vital statistics on the birth of a child. They are

         11  not required to give us information that this

         12  particular baby was born to this mother.

         13                 What they typically do is give us

         14  information because they are facilitating on behalf

         15  of the mother the addition of the child to that

         16  Medicaid case.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Do they do that

         18  also, and I am not saying this in any facetious way,

         19  do they do this also because in their own economic

         20  interest, they need to be paid for the care of the

         21  child, then automatically they would consider for

         22  that purpose only?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         24  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: There is a variety of reasons.

         25  Without assigning why they are doing it, yes, to get
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          2  paid, yes, that is one of the reasons that they are

          3  going to do this.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: The most

          5  likelihood is that when a mother is on Medicaid to

          6  deliver a baby, the most likelihood would be that

          7  you would be notified that this baby is born, even

          8  if she doesn't, you will be notified.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         10  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: We think that notification and

         11  application on behalf of the hospitals, yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay. Suppose

         13  that you are notified, suppose that you get

         14  notified, suppose that the hospital tells you, what

         15  is the action that you take after that?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         17  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: We establish the eligibility for

         18  the child. We put this information, all of the

         19  demographic information, et cetera, onto the welfare

         20  management system, and then the card is issued to

         21  the mother.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And then the

         23  mother may never go in and intervene and request the

         24  services from you. The hospital didn't.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER
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          2  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: No, no, no. The mother completes

          3  the form. The mother affirmatively is saying I want

          4  Medicaid for my child.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: See that is

          6  where I want to make the differentiation. The

          7  hospital will say to the mother then first before

          8  going to you, look, I need to report this to the

          9  Medicaid Office, that the baby is here and we are

         10  going to fill out these papers now. And then

         11  somebody from the hospital will go to the mother who

         12  is in the hospital at that moment and fill out the

         13  application there. And then she is notified that

         14  this process went through, and she has the signed

         15  documentation.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         17  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: And she will receive a letter in

         18  the mail that says, you know, the eligibility has

         19  been established for --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Is it a

         21  possibility that this will not happen?

         22                 Is there a possibility that a woman

         23  will go into a hospital, give birth, the baby is

         24  born and the hospital never contacts you, never does

         25  this process, never puts the social worker of the
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          2  hospital to fill out the application, to make the

          3  woman sign? Is there a possibility?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          5  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: I guess there is a possibility,

          6  but what most likely is going to happen is that the

          7  mother is going to come in and establish eligibility

          8  for her child.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: You have got

         10  trained organizations that serve by Medicaid

         11  prescreeners, right?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         13  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And PCAP

         15  providers in hospitals constitute a significant

         16  portion of that, why isn't that prescreening just

         17  automatically done by the hospital at the time of

         18  delivery?

         19                 I don't understand why there has to

         20  be a delay? What is it?

         21                 By your saying that the hospital is

         22  supposed to notify you and that is the same thing?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         24  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: My only
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          2  experience in my office, and of course we only hear

          3  from people who have problems, is that it takes much

          4  longer than five days to get a Medicaid Card.

          5                 Can you tell us, do you have any

          6  figures or statistics?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          8  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: I don't have them with me but we

          9  can get that for you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So a Medicaid

         11  Card for an infant, even if the hospital prescreens

         12  and sends it in is not available immediately, right?

         13  A woman doesn't leave the hospital with a Medicaid

         14  Card?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         16  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: The infant --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: The infant's

         18  Medicaid Card.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         20  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: No.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Do you have any

         22  internal, do you have any training materials for

         23  hospitals or providers about this eligibility for

         24  infants?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER
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          2  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Can you show it

          4  to us?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          6  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: We could show that to you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And what about

          8  the State Department of Health? What do they have?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         10  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: As far as training material and

         11  procedures?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Yes.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         14  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: We could try to get that for you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: All right. To

         16  providers for PCAP and Medicaid in hospitals.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         18  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So, do you

         20  monitor the access to enrollment? The services you

         21  say you don't monitor, the care, right? You don't

         22  monitor care?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         24  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Right.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But do you
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          2  monitor the enrollment of infants?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          4  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Meaning?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Do you have the

          6  numbers?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          8  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Yes, we have the number of

          9  applications that we received for newborns, we can

         10  get those numbers to you. We have it on a monthly

         11  basis, we can get that for you.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Did you compare

         13  those numbers to the babies that were born in those

         14  hospitals?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         16  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: No. Because the vital statistics

         17  data that the City Department of Health has is for

         18  all babies, so, you know, it would be very difficult

         19  to reconcile those that are specific in this process

         20  to the general population.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Why can't an

         22  infant who is born to a woman who is on Medicaid

         23  leave the hospital with a temporary card?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         25  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Because the hospital is not
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          2  establishing eligibility for this child.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But the baby is

          4  eligible if it is born and the mother is on

          5  Medicaid.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          7  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: A Medicaid Card and that

          8  temporary card is issued by the local social service

          9  system. Hospitals do not issue --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But I am asking

         11  you why you can't consider changing it. If the

         12  mother is eligible for Medicaid and is on Medicaid

         13  and the delivery was covered by Medicaid and the

         14  nursery fees for the infant were covered by

         15  Medicaid, why can't that hospital give that woman a

         16  temporary card to the infant so that when she wants

         17  to see a doctor, she doesn't have to go to the

         18  emergency room of an overburdened hospital, but she

         19  can go to a clinic or to her provider; why can't

         20  that happen?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         22  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Because the hospital does not

         23  ultimately establish eligibility, so --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: The eligibility

         25  is automatic.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          3  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: I understand that. But the rules

          4  and the regulations in New York State regarding

          5  Medicaid require that the eligibility be established

          6  by submitting the documents to us, even though they

          7  are prescreened, et cetera, and then receive a card.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But if we make

          9  it a temporary card --

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         11  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: But you only receive a temporary

         12  card, Councilwoman, when we have established

         13  eligibility.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But the baby

         15  has established eligibility when it is born. It is

         16  coming out of somebody that is already on Medicaid,

         17  it is automatically eligible.

         18                 So, therefore, what we are saying is

         19  give that baby a temporary card, therefore that baby

         20  is protected between the -- you can't expect a

         21  mother who has a new infant to go to your office

         22  within the week to get a Medicaid Card, and it just

         23  makes it almost impossible if --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: You made a

         25  statement in there that got my attention, because
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          2  the statement you made is my job, and I want to

          3  repeat it in order for me to go proceed to some

          4  legislation.

          5                 You said that the law doesn't allow

          6  us, be more specific about that.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          8  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: You know, we have prescreener

          9  organizations and we train them up to a certain

         10  point. The establishment of eligibility is a

         11  requirement of the local social service system.  The

         12  state and the federal government do not allow us to

         13  allow other organizations to establish, to do the

         14  final authorization of eligibility for Medicaid. It

         15  is a federal law and it is a state law.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Isn't this

         17  eligibility different from the original Medicaid

         18  holder? Have you tried to see if that would be

         19  within the purview of the legislation?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         21  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: We have --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: It would seem

         23  to me that is eminently sensible and might answer

         24  some problems.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER
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          2  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: There has been historical

          3  attempts by our program to ease the burden of

          4  applying for Medicaid, and we have over the years

          5  worked with organizations on simplifying the

          6  application process. We have most recently been

          7  working with the state in simplifying application

          8  process through Title 21, and we continue to

          9  collaborate with the state in simplifying the

         10  recertification process and those are all of the

         11  efforts of the Medical Assistance Programs in an

         12  attempt to make easier for women access to Medicaid.

         13                 So, in answer to your question, we

         14  have attempted over the years a variety of things to

         15  simplify the Medicaid process.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Commissioner,

         17  the women already have the access. It is the infants

         18  who are not able to do it themselves, are the ones

         19  who don't have the access. And it seems to me that

         20  that would be --

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         22  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: That there is a way to simplify

         23  it.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Commissioner,

         25  let me see if I understand something here. And let's
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          2  see if the Administration can work with the Council

          3  to propose an amendment on changing the law that

          4  will allow this to be possible.

          5                 You said that you have done

          6  everything possible to simplify the process. I want

          7  to leave the process aside now. And I am going to

          8  ask you in regard of what is it that that doesn't

          9  allow you in terms of legislatively, to proceed to

         10  make this possible?

         11                 Meaning by that, if a child is born

         12  out of a woman who has Medicaid, the woman has

         13  Medicaid and it is covering that pregnancy, all of

         14  that documentation and all of that approval is on

         15  the Medicaid office, they are going to pay for all

         16  of that, for that delivery of that baby. Then

         17  already we have all of this documentation in place

         18  that says that this baby is coming, I don't

         19  understand that for the purpose of legal aspects we

         20  cannot identify an individual that doesn't exist.

         21                 Therefore, at the moment they are

         22  born, they exist as an individual. At that moment

         23  they are born, what is the regulation that we need

         24  to change? Can you be helpful to us and tell us what

         25  is it that we have to change in the legislation?

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            61

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  What is it that we have to do? What is it that we

          3  have to proceed with? And let's see if the

          4  Administration can move together with us in order to

          5  avoid having babies dying due to the fact that a

          6  hospital would not give them care because they were

          7  allegedly not Medicaid eligible or not covered.

          8                 I mean, they were eligible, they were

          9  a baby of the mother with Medicaid and it is

         10  outrageous that they were not given that care.

         11                 What is it that we can do to work

         12  together on this? And let's be the first time to

         13  sponsor a piece of legislation between me and the

         14  Administration.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         16  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Well, I am glad to be part of

         17  such historical ground.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then do you

         19  think there is any way we can work together in

         20  bridging this gap and not allowing this to happen

         21  again?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         23  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: I would be more than willing to

         24  sit with members of your staff describing to them

         25  what we have done historically, describe for them
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          2  what is contemplated at the state level and see

          3  where we can take it from there. I don't have a

          4  problem with that.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you,

          6  Commissioner.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Have you

          8  investigated the Waldron and the Chieves (phonetic)

          9  cases?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         11  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Investigated? I know the State

         12  Department of Health did a thorough investigation of

         13  the cases.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Right. And they

         15  reprimanded or whatever Methodist Hospital.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         17  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Right.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: I don't know

         19  what the final outcome of the other one was. Have

         20  you then done anything with Methodist Hospital?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         22  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Again, I just want to state --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But they were

         24  denied care. They didn't look at the child.

         25                 They were denied because of
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          2  eligibility. She did not have a Medicaid Card. That

          3  is why I think your agency should talk to them,

          4  because it wasn't a question -- it's a clinic and it

          5  was not even looking at the child because the infant

          6  had no Medicaid Card. Now that has to be of interest

          7  to you because it is an eligibility question. I

          8  don't mean it that way, I mean in your purview.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         10  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: What we clarified as the State

         11  Department of Health and the City clarifies in every

         12  case, for hospitals and health care organizations,

         13  what are the rules pertaining to Medicaid. I mean,

         14  that is an ongoing process. It is ongoing.

         15  Organizations, Article 28 facilities, hospitals that

         16  are licensed or certified by the State of New York

         17  understand this process. I am not suggesting that

         18  there wasn't -- I mean setting that separate and

         19  apart from these two cases, that there is an

         20  understanding out there and a requirement that they

         21  understand these issues exists.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: All right.

         23  Thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I just want to

         25  tell you that your presentation was very thorough
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          2  and clear.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          4  JIMENEZ-HERNANDEZ: Well, good. I am glad.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you very

          6  much for your cooperation.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Dr.

          8  Ottenheimer. Why don't we bring up a panel, Rosa

          9  Morel and Anne Reiniger.

         10                 Do you want to start, Dr.

         11  Ottenheimer. Tell us who you are and what you do.

         12                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: I am a practicing

         13  obstetrician/gynecologist, and Director of

         14  Adolescent OB/GYN services at --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Can you people

         16  hear her at all?

         17                 SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE: No.

         18                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: Okay.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Just talk very

         20  loud.

         21                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: I am a practicing

         22  obstetrician/gynecologist and Director of Adolescent

         23  OB/GYN Services at Bronx Lebanon Hospital Center in

         24  the South Bronx.

         25                 As someone directly involved in
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          2  patient care, I thought I could best illustrate the

          3  barriers faced by poor women seeking health care

          4  services through Medicaid by telling you about some

          5  of my patients and their experiences, which will

          6  certainly sit in contrast to what we just heard.

          7                 I have also included in your packet

          8  several scholarly papers and state statistics which

          9  I thought, which I hope will be of help as you

         10  consider these issues surrounding women's health and

         11  Medicaid coverage.

         12                 There are four major barriers faced

         13  by women applying for Medicaid benefits. The first

         14  is the Medicaid application itself, which you will

         15  find in your packet.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Dr.

         17  Ottenheimer, you didn't give us copies of your

         18  speech, testimony? We just have the reports.

         19                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: You have a lot of

         20  what I am going to say but not verbatim, and I can

         21  do that for you, if you want.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: All right.

         23  Okay. No, it's all right.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Do you have

         25  testimony in writing? Do you mind if we make a copy
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          2  of that?

          3                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: Not at all.

          4                 Sorry, I didn't know that we were

          5  supposed to do that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Do you want to

          7  wait or do you want to go on?

          8                 MS. REINIGER: Okay, we will start.

          9                 I am Anne Reiniger. Good afternoon,

         10  Councilwoman Eldridge and Hernandez (sic).

         11                 I am the Executive Director for New

         12  York Society for Prevention of Cruelty to Children.

         13  We are a co-sponsor of a program called Best

         14  Beginnings, a child abuse prevention program in

         15  Washington Heights, and with me today is Rosa Morell

         16  who is a supervisor at our Best Beginnings Program,

         17  and we thank you for giving us the opportunity to

         18  share our experiences with the barriers to getting

         19  Medicaid benefits.

         20                 Just quickly, Best Beginnings is a

         21  program set up in 1994 pursuant to State Legislation

         22  whose goal is to prevent child abuse and neglect, to

         23  promote optimal health, child care and development

         24  to enhance a parent's self-sufficiency.

         25                 We currently provide this service to
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          2  over 300 families in the Washington Heights

          3  Community and there are two other programs in New

          4  York City, one in the Bronx and one in Brooklyn.

          5                 Almost all of the mothers received

          6  PCAP during their pregnancy and after the birth

          7  almost all of the children are eligible for

          8  Medicaid.

          9                 Best Beginnings Program itself is a

         10  collaboration of the Society, Columbia College of

         11  Physicians and Surgeons and Alianza Dominicana.

         12                 Our staff of home visitors, also

         13  known as family support workers, make weekly visits

         14  to the homes of families from the earliest stages of

         15  pregnancy until the child is ready for school, and

         16  the Best Beginnings Program fills that gap between

         17  the hospital and the family, the services and the

         18  family. What we do is we identify mothers during

         19  pregnancy by going door to door, by going to the

         20  clinic in Washington Heights, and wherever mothers

         21  can be found who are pregnant, we go to the Wyck

         22  Centers, and we help them through their pregnancy

         23  and to assure adequate prenatal care. Part of it is

         24  to assure that they get Medicaid benefits, and I

         25  will say under the PCAP program it is very
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          2  straightforward in terms of the applications,

          3  receiving the benefits, receiving the medical care,

          4  there really are no glitches there. The glitches

          5  come when the baby is born and they are eligible for

          6  Medicaid.

          7                 Just a little backing up, in terms of

          8  the program we provide, the ongoing support, that

          9  education, that information, to the families who

         10  need it so desperately. We link them to the

         11  available services, we coordinate their medical

         12  care, we support and counsel the families to

         13  encourage parents independence.

         14                 The heart of our testimony is really

         15  going to be provided by Rosa Morel. She is going to

         16  talk about some of her experiences. She had been a

         17  family support worker, home visitor, before being

         18  promoted to being a supervisor and has had many

         19  experiences with our participants with the Medicaid

         20  policies and the impact on our families, and

         21  particularly the mothers and their children.

         22                 She is going to present three

         23  families and their difficulties in receiving the

         24  Medicaid benefits, despite the significant efforts

         25  by both the families and our staff. And that is
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          2  basically the end of my testimony. The rest of the

          3  testimony are the stories and the illustrations of

          4  these three particular families, and you will see

          5  especially after the first one, the documentation of

          6  all of the efforts made by us to get the child on

          7  Medicaid.

          8                 MS. MOREL: Good afternoon. My name is

          9  Rosa Morel. Good afternoon, Margarita Lopez, and

         10  Councilwoman Eldridge.

         11                 The first case that I am going to

         12  read to you is an example of what Deputy Director

         13  Hernandez was talking about, which I was dying on my

         14  seat to hear what she had to say, and none of that,

         15  if I may say, is what is happening out there.

         16                 Case number one: Ms. LR is a

         17  39-year-old Dominican single mother of two children,

         18  one is 14 years old and the target child is 16

         19  months old. The family has been participating in

         20  Best Beginnings since August 1997, at which time the

         21  mother was six months pregnant.

         22                 The presenting problem at this time

         23  is the following: Since mom is not working her

         24  financial support is public assistance that she

         25  receives for her daughter. From the time mom was
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          2  five months pregnant, she was eligible to have the

          3  newborn added to her budget. If that had been done,

          4  by the time the child was born her Medicaid would

          5  have been issued. The child was born on 12/4/97 and

          6  is now 16 months old. He was not added to the budget

          7  until March 1999.

          8                 From 1997 to 1999, the Family Support

          9  Worker and mom were very diligent in providing all

         10  of the documents needed. During this time, the FSW

         11  visited and called the IMC numerous times and was

         12  promised that the paperwork would be completed,

         13  including the child's benefits. This did not happen.

         14                 Instead, mom and the FSW were given

         15  the run around each time they contacted the

         16  Eligibility Specialist.

         17                 However, it was not until March 1999

         18  that the Eligibility Specialist -- like Margarita

         19  Lopez, my first language is Spanish -- was able to

         20  add the child to the budget and issue a Medicaid

         21  Card.

         22                 You can see at the end of the first

         23  case all of the attempts that were made and the

         24  visits to the Income Centers to add this baby to the

         25  budget.
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          2                 Due to our program linkage with the

          3  Primary Medical Provider, the child was seen by the

          4  doctor without medical coverage for regular well

          5  care visits and immunizations until almost the age

          6  of one. The child was born was hydrocele for which

          7  the doctor recommended surgery as early as possible.

          8  Mom and the FSW spoke to the Eligibility Specialist

          9  about the need for the child to be issued Medicaid

         10  so this procedure could be done. The response

         11  received from the Eligibility Specialist was that

         12  the child should be taken to a public hospital where

         13  there is not need for medical coverage.

         14                 So can you imagine a mother hearing

         15  this from a worker? The child needing a medical

         16  procedure and being told to take to one of the

         17  public hospitals to be done because there is nothing

         18  they could do about it?

         19                 So, following that is the list of all

         20  of the attempts that were made by the FSW and the

         21  mother.

         22                 Case number two: Ms. YA is a

         23  39-year-old single Dominican mother of three

         24  children, aged 10 years, 9 years and seven months.

         25  The family has been participating in the Best
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          2  Beginnings program since July 15, 1998, at which

          3  time the mom was six months pregnant.

          4                 The presenting problem at this time

          5  is the following:

          6                 Mom's public assistance case was

          7  discontinued as of 12/1/98 because HRA stated that

          8  she failed to report to the Office of Employment on

          9  Saturday, 11/7/98, at 8:00 a.m.

         10                 At the time she was asked to report

         11  for employment, it was only 15 days after she had

         12  given birth and had a tubal ligation.

         13                 Participant contacted the Office of

         14  Employment to reschedule and was told that she would

         15  receive another appointment from her Eligibility

         16  Specialist. Participant never received the

         17  appointment. Instead, she received a letter from HRA

         18  indicating that her resources would be discontinued

         19  as of 12/1/98.

         20                 Participant attended a Fair Hearing

         21  on 2/10/99. However, due to the fact that she got

         22  there late, she could not be seen. She was told that

         23  she needed to be rescheduled and would receive the

         24  next appointment by mail. It took two months for her

         25  to receive an appointment. This appointment was
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          2  scheduled for 4/5/99.

          3                 During this waiting period from

          4  12/1/98 to present, the participant has been dealing

          5  with an eviction notice, not medical coverage for

          6  her or the children, and the burden of having to

          7  provide food for her children without any financial

          8  assistance. Once again, going back to what

          9  Councilwoman Eldridge said, that all children should

         10  be protected, how come these children were penalized

         11  for mom not being able to keep her employability

         12  appointment on a Saturday at 8:00 a.m.?

         13                 Due to our linkage with the primary

         14  medical provider for her newborn child, she has been

         15  able to be seen without any medical coverage for

         16  regular well care visits and immunizations.

         17                 However, I spoke to mother today this

         18  morning before coming here, and she took the baby to

         19  her medical provider, one of the clinics at Columbia

         20  Presbyterian Hospital, and was told that the baby

         21  cannot be seen unless she paid $40 for the visit. So

         22  she is still having a problem.

         23                 The P.A. case remains closed even

         24  though the Fair Hearing outcomes were positive. The

         25  Judge's decision, made on 4/9/99, was for the
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          2  agency, IMC, to restore benefits to the participant.

          3                 Several attempts have been made by a

          4  Family Support Worker, as well as participant, to

          5  contact the agency's Fair Hearing Unit with no

          6  success.

          7                 As shown by the above case, the

          8  worker's effort to assist participant are sometimes

          9  hindered by a delay at the Income Maintenance Office

         10  in processing the pertinent paperwork.

         11                 Also, lack of availability of the HRA

         12  worker to make and receive phone calls has an impact

         13  on the communication process by slowing down the

         14  delivery of services needed by the family.

         15                 The last case will give you a better

         16  sense of what Commissioner Hernandez was saying.

         17                 This is an 18 year old who has been a

         18  participant in Best Beginnings since 1998. The child

         19  was born on 6/18/98. Since the day of the child's

         20  birth, the participant has been trying to get

         21  Medicaid for the target child. She is receiving

         22  disability benefits. The participant has been going

         23  to the Dyckman Center for almost a year trying to

         24  get the child's Medicaid benefits. Participant and

         25  her mother have experienced negative encounters with
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          2  their worker. The child has been hospitalized twice

          3  in the last two months, on 4/1/99 and 6/12/99

          4  without Medicaid coverage. The bills from these

          5  hospitalizations are causing much distress to the

          6  mother. The baby has been able to receive yearly

          7  well baby visits because of the linkage with the

          8  Medical provider. Her bills are almost $2,000 for

          9  the two hospitalizations he had in the past two

         10  months. The mother hasn't received anything to apply

         11  for the inpatient stay.

         12                 That's all I have to say, children

         13  need to be protected and something needs to be done

         14  about getting medical coverage, which is not

         15  happening.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Deborah, go on.

         17                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: That is the Medicaid

         18  application, which some of you have in front of you

         19  now.

         20                 One more time, I am Dr. Deborah

         21  Ottenheimer, at Bronx Lebanon Hospital Center,

         22  OB/GYN.

         23                 Pages three through 11 are the

         24  Medicaid applications. I have had many opportunities

         25  to help patients fill these forms out and, frankly,
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          2  each time I am struck by how confusing and

          3  cumbersome the application is and that is after a MB

          4  and a BA and all of that education.

          5                 Pages four and five of the

          6  application are typical. On these two pages, 47

          7  specific financial questions are asked, each

          8  requiring three to five individual answers.

          9                 For example, one question reads:

         10  "Indicate if you or anyone who lives with you

         11  receives dividends or interest from railroad

         12  retirement benefits", to which you must answer yes

         13  or no.

         14                 "If yes, give the value and who."

         15                 Another example is: "Indicate if you

         16  or anyone who lives with you is applying as an IRA,

         17  KEOGH, 401K or deferred compensation account." To

         18  which one must again answer yes or no. And "if yes,

         19  give the amount value and who."

         20                 While it is certainly reasonable of

         21  the state to ask financial questions, I know no

         22  Medicaid applicant who even knows what a KEOGH is.

         23                 The fact that most applicants don't

         24  understand many of the terms used in the application

         25  means they don't know if they are answering the
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          2  question correctly. Nor do they necessarily know how

          3  to go about finding the information that they need.

          4                 In general I help French-speaking

          5  patients fill these applications out, but then it

          6  takes two to three hours to fill these out.

          7                 The remaining barriers I would like

          8  to call your attention to are, first, patients have

          9  a limited ability to understand the complexities of

         10  Medicaid Managed Care Plans which are coming to an

         11  increased prevalence in this City.

         12                 Second, that the maze of officials

         13  and case workers to navigate while trying to apply

         14  for Medicaid is confusing and illogical.

         15                 And finally, that there is a striking

         16  lack of desire on the part of Medicaid employees to

         17  facilitate Medicaid allocation.

         18                 I hope to show you examples of these

         19  barriers by relating to you some of the problems

         20  faced by my patients.

         21                 Many of our pregnant patients are

         22  being recruited to Medicaid managed programs, at

         23  least in the South Bronx, in supermarkets and

         24  shopping areas. They are reassured that their

         25  enrollment will not require that they change their
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          2  prenatal care provider. However, on many occasions

          3  we have had to refuse visits to patients who have

          4  gone from fee-for-service Medicaid, MMC or Medicaid

          5  managed care.

          6                 Not infrequently our clinic

          7  facilitates disenrollment from MMC programs so

          8  patients can receive continuous care from a single

          9  health care provider throughout their pregnancy.

         10                 Second, many of our patients are

         11  unable to understand the complexities of their MMC

         12  benefits and restrictions, even when the literature

         13  is provided in their native language. It is not

         14  uncommon for a patient to come to me with a 60 or

         15  70-page booklet and ask me if I can help her figure

         16  out who her doctor is supposed to be.

         17                 And third, many of our patients are

         18  unaware that their MMC plans may not cover basic

         19  family planning or abortion services. While they may

         20  be eligible to seek such services outside of the

         21  network, this is rarely explained to them.

         22                 In addition, my coworkers and I

         23  frequently encounter great resistance at an

         24  administrative level when we try to facilitate

         25  provision of family planning services to these
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          2  patients.

          3                 Moving on to some specific patients,

          4  I would like to tell you first about Crystal, a

          5  16-year-old high school student who became pregnant

          6  and knew very early that she wanted an abortion so

          7  that she could finish high school and eventually

          8  apply to college.

          9                 She presented to a free-standing

         10  Gynecology clinic for evaluation and was found to be

         11  11 and a half weeks pregnant. She was referred to

         12  Planned Parenthood for a first trimester abortion.

         13                 When Crystal arrived at Planned

         14  Parenthood she was informed for the first time that

         15  her Medicaid had been terminated for reasons still

         16  unknown to her. Because her sister is my patient,

         17  Crystal was brought to our clinic, seen by our

         18  Medicaid counselors.

         19                 It took ten weeks for Crystal's

         20  Medicaid to be reactivated, by which time she was 22

         21  and a half weeks pregnant. Crystal was able to

         22  obtain an abortion but had to undergo a much more

         23  dangerous procedure as a result of the Medicaid

         24  coverage delay.

         25                 Another patient of mine, Rocheal, a
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          2  26 year old who received prenatal care for her

          3  second pregnancy at Bronx Lebanon. She was

          4  hospitalized for pre-term labor in January and

          5  discharged home on strict bed rest.

          6                 During her seven-day hospitalization,

          7  Rocheal missed an administrative Medicaid

          8  appointment and as a result her Medicaid was

          9  terminated, even though she had documentation

         10  confirming her hospitalization.

         11                 Rocheal delivered a healthy baby girl

         12  in February but two days later had to be rushed to

         13  the operating room when I found her to have a dead

         14  right ovary on the verge of gangrene which I had to

         15  remove.

         16                 Patients with this condition require

         17  three to six months of anti-coagulation drug therapy

         18  and weekly visits to the doctor for close

         19  monitoring. Because her Medicaid had been terminated

         20  as a result of our decision to hospitalize her in

         21  January, Rocheal was unable to come for her weekly

         22  visits.

         23                 She was able to obtain her medication

         24  gratis from the hospital pharmacy, which she took

         25  faithfully. We arranged for her to come to the
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          2  clinic for free, but Rocheal couldn't afford the bus

          3  fare. On several occasions I gave her the bus fare,

          4  but she usually called to cancel her appointment,

          5  saying that she had used the money for food instead,

          6  since her food stamps application was also pending.

          7                 In six weeks Rocheal was only able to

          8  come to two clinic visits. At her last visit her lab

          9  values were so bad that we decided that it was safer

         10  to stop the medication rather than to continue

         11  without monitoring.

         12                 During the six weeks of therapy

         13  Rocheal had repeatedly called her case worker

         14  without response. I spent a total of four hours

         15  calling six different Medicaid offices in an effort

         16  to explain the life-threatening nature of Rocheal's

         17  condition and her urgent need for Medicaid coverage.

         18                 Rocheal's Medicaid was reinstated ten

         19  weeks after her surgery and four weeks after I had

         20  to stop her medication.

         21                 Lastly, I would like to share

         22  Shaquon's story with you.

         23                 Shaquon is a 19-year-old woman,

         24  pregnant with her first child, who was so excited to

         25  be pregnant she gets up every day to read to her
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          2  baby.

          3                 At 18 weeks gestation, Shaquon turned

          4  19 years old and was informed that she would have to

          5  move out of her Tier II housing facility she

          6  occupied with her mother as a dependent. If she

          7  failed to vacate the apartment, her mother would

          8  face eviction.

          9                 She was told that her Medicaid as a

         10  dependent was also being terminated and that she

         11  needed to apply as an independent adult.

         12                 Shaquon, at 19 weeks gestation, spent

         13  two nights sleeping on the floor of the Emergency

         14  Assistance Unit before she was placed in a shelter.

         15  One week later I had to admit her to the hospital

         16  with a fever of 104 and a severe case of strep

         17  throat. It took nearly two months for her Medicaid

         18  benefits to be reinstated. In the interim, I

         19  arranged to see her free of charge so that she could

         20  see me for the duration of her pregnancy and not

         21  have to change providers.

         22                 So, I hope that these patients'

         23  stories make real to you the burdens placed on truly

         24  needy women when they are forced to turn to the

         25  Medicaid system for help.
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          2                 While I am certain that there are

          3  people who try to take advantage of the Medicaid

          4  system, it is inexcusable to me that women like

          5  those that I have described to you are unable to

          6  receive adequate health care in a timely fashion

          7  under the current system.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Do you want to

          9  tell us some of the things that are in this packet

         10  of information you gave us?

         11                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: Sure. The Medicaid

         12  application. If you want an original you are welcome

         13  to have it.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Yes, we will

         15  take that.

         16                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: What else did I put

         17  in here? I put some New York State statistics as to

         18  how many people are actually eligible for the

         19  Medicaid and subsistence aid, Temporary Assistance

         20  For Needy Families, Safety Net Adults. I gave you a

         21  chart of indicators of access for Medicaid

         22  fee-for-service, versus managed care in New York

         23  City which was produced by the United Hospital

         24  Federation, which actually comes out favorably for

         25  Medicaid managed care, and I thought it would be
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          2  good for you to see that, although that is not my

          3  experience in the South Bronx at all.

          4                 There are a couple of tables issued

          5  by the New York State Department of Health regarding

          6  Medicaid managed care enrollment, and I thought it

          7  was real important for you to know about those

          8  things, since soon we will have universal Medicaid

          9  managed care, which will be interesting.

         10                 Some nationwide demographics from

         11  HCFA, and then I included three articles, one of

         12  them from the New England Journal of Medicine, the

         13  American Health Care System Medicaid, by John

         14  Englehart. There were two parts, one was Medicaid,

         15  one was Medicare.

         16                 An article from the Alan Guttmacher,

         17  Family Planning perspectives about contraceptive

         18  services under Managed Care, and this is not a

         19  Medicaid managed care but in general the

         20  difficulties based getting those services through

         21  managed care.

         22                 And finally, a policy statement, also

         23  issued by the Alan Guttmacher Foundation regarding

         24  Medicaid managed care specifically and Family

         25  Planning Services, and my CV.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: We introduced a

          3  bill last year, over a year ago, I guess, on

          4  mandatory managed care, managed Medicaid, which is

          5  what we are embarking on now in the City, and the

          6  fact that not all of the -- as you said, that not

          7  all of the providers provide a full range of women's

          8  health services and our concerns about that, and the

          9  bill has gone nowhere.

         10                 It was two-pronged. One part of it

         11  when we originally did it, we really wanted to say

         12  that you couldn't -- what we were more concerned

         13  about, although we are concerned about women being

         14  able to make the choice understanding all of the

         15  information, we are concerned about those women who

         16  don't select a managed care provider and are

         17  automatically assigned to a managed care provider,

         18  in the event that they get assigned to a provider

         19  that doesn't provide the full range of women's

         20  health care.

         21                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: It is not just the

         22  provider, it is also the Corporation. For example,

         23  Sadelifare (phonetic) is a Catholic HMO provider and

         24  they own a huge number of HMO Medicaid enrollees in

         25  the City.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            86

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Right. And they

          3  also will receive a large number of auto enrolled, I

          4  mean that it comes up randomly get assigned and they

          5  don't necessarily know that they are not going to

          6  get Family Planning or abortion or referrals, and it

          7  presents an enormous problem.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Can I ask a

          9  question?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But it also

         11  presents an enormous political interest.

         12                 Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Ms. Morel?

         14                 MS. MOREL: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Can you please

         16  pronounce your last name for me?

         17                 MS. REINIGER: Reiniger.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay.

         19                 You speak about a program in your

         20  presentation called Best Beginnings; how does

         21  somebody become involved in that program? Who

         22  involves them? How do they get to you?

         23                 MS. REINIGER:  It's a program that is

         24  offered in just two census tracks. It is universally

         25  offered to every pregnant woman or family with a
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          2  newborn in two census tracks in Washington Heights.

          3                 It was designated, it started in '94

          4  --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: How do you

          6  offer the program?

          7                 MS. REINIGER: Oh. We reach out.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: How?

          9                 MS. REINIGER: We have a community

         10  outreach worker and family assessment workers who go

         11  to the clinics every day, at 180th Street, walks

         12  around the clinic, goes to the Wyck Centers, the

         13  hospital.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: If the person

         15  doesn't go to the hospital, let's say it is a mother

         16  who doesn't go to the hospital who is pregnant, who

         17  is in the apartment somewhere, do you reach out to

         18  those people?

         19                 MS. MOREL: We also go door-to-door,

         20  yes.

         21                 MS. REINIGER: We put flyers up. We

         22  had a super once, a woman came with a flyer, her

         23  super gave it to her because he saw the flyer, knew

         24  she was pregnant and said this might be something

         25  you would be interested in, and the office is on
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          2  179th and Amsterdam, right in the middle of our

          3  catchment area.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And why was it

          5  placed there only?

          6                 MS. REINIGER: Well, it is a

          7  state-funded program. There is limited money, it is

          8  really just starting out. In fact, we are right now

          9  attempting to scale it up, in talking with various

         10  City agencies, to see how it might be able to be

         11  provided to more people. But it just was a new kind

         12  of program and so the funds we could get were just

         13  provided in that particular community.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: The case that

         15  you described, the first case, that person

         16  encountered a series of problems, at all times this

         17  person was being coached or represented or helped by

         18  a person from your program?

         19                 MS. MOREL: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And even with

         21  all of that technical assistance that that person

         22  had, the knowledge that that person had, all of

         23  these incidents occurred to this woman even with all

         24  of that?

         25                 MS. MOREL: Yes.
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          2                 MS. REINIGER: Even with all of that.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: It was a

          4  thorough follow-through in the process involving

          5  this woman with her Medicaid?

          6                 MS. REINIGER: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then in the

          8  case that you present here, you said that this

          9  person was pregnant six months at the time that you

         10  got her?

         11                 MS. MOREL: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then six months

         13  from the time of the contact with the Medicaid

         14  Office, and they are aware that this woman is

         15  pregnant, that her baby is coming, and they were

         16  working in the process of making her eligible for

         17  the baby.

         18                 MS. MOREL: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And you

         20  incurred all of these problems.

         21                 MS. MOREL: Yes. Not me, but the

         22  workers assigned to this case.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I understand

         24  that. I mean the program.

         25                 MS. MOREL: Yes, they knew. Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then even by

          3  them knowing that they are serving a woman with six

          4  months pregnant, on the day ensures this woman is

          5  receiving care (sic), even when all of that is known

          6  to them, the baby is born and the baby doesn't get

          7  the insurance?

          8                 MS. MOREL: Right.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: How much is the

         11  cost of your program? Is there a way of figuring

         12  that out?

         13                 MS. REINIGER: It comes out for New

         14  York City about $3,500 a family a year. So, that is

         15  how it breaks out.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Do you have any

         17  costing of yours?

         18                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: Of which?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Of your

         20  program.

         21                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: For now it is going

         22  to be about $30,000 a year. But it is a different

         23  thing, it is a much less preventive.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: How many

         25  Medicaid people come through Bronx Lebanon?
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          2                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: Everybody is

          3  Medicaid at Bronx Lebanon.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So, how many

          5  babies do you deliver there?

          6                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: We deliver about

          7  2,000 babies a year. If you don't have Medicaid,

          8  either you are uninsured, which is about 15 percent

          9  of our population, or you have Medicaid. There is no

         10  private insurance at Bronx Lebanon.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: In your

         12  experience, the three of you, do you experience

         13  mothers who are pregnant and have babies to get

         14  Medicaid for the babies five days after the baby is

         15  born?

         16                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: No.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: After you

         18  proceed with some obligations and everything?

         19                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: Never.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: They say to do

         21  it from the time everything is --

         22                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: You can do it before

         23  the baby is born.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Well, I

         25  understand before the baby is born if you don't get
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          2  it --

          3                 MS. REINIGER: Even after the baby is

          4  born, never.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: You never know

          6  of a case that the baby got Medicaid five days after

          7  the baby is born?

          8                 MS. REINIGER: Not that I know of.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Commissioner

         10  Hernandez testified here that the baby is supposed

         11  to get that Medicaid Card.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Actually what

         13  she said was, they are deemed eligible and then they

         14  receive the Medicaid Card five days after the

         15  eligibility is decided. She didn't talk about the

         16  babies.

         17                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: What happens in our

         18  clinics, since we have a whole Medicaid population,

         19  is we assume that the baby is going to get Medicaid

         20  and the patients are seen, the babies are seen

         21  before they are ever issued their Medicaid number

         22  because you can back bill for it basically.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So how does --

         24                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: Like women who apply

         25  for PCAP, it takes six to ten weeks to get PCAP, and
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          2  you assume that the woman is going to get it because

          3  you know the eligibility criteria and you see her

          4  and then you back bill because the state says we can

          5  do that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then the

          7  assumption that is put in place is an assumption to

          8  save the health on the life of the baby, and that

          9  the question of billing will be done later --

         10                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: Right.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Because you

         12  have been told that you will be paid?

         13                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: But your assumption

         14  that Medicaid is interested in helping people get

         15  health care is false.

         16                 I mean, ours --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I don't have

         18  that assumption. I only have to sit here and be who

         19  I am for now. In my role that I am playing right

         20  now, I am trying to get to the bottom of how we can

         21  fix this, if there is any way that it can be fixed.

         22                 MS. REINIGER: It is my understanding

         23  under Child Health Plus, which is that gap, that

         24  upon enrollment there is eligibility and I think it

         25  is like a 90 day period whereby when the eligibility
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          2  is being determined that, you know, you are not

          3  eligible after the 90 days I think it might cut off.

          4                 But they did write it in such a way

          5  so that upon enrollment there is immediate

          6  eligibility to be able to provide the service right

          7  away.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Madame Chair, I

          9  have a question for you.

         10                 How come these two women were

         11  prosecuted and assumed to be guilty of not providing

         12  the care to their child, and the state doesn't even,

         13  or the City doesn't even take responsibility --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Both of them

         15  were not prosecuted actually. The one in Brooklyn

         16  the DA dropped the charges. She was never indicted.

         17                 The Bronx was the indictment and

         18  convicted, and that was because -- for many reasons.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: You want my

         21  interpretation?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: We can talk

         23  about that privately, okay?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But it is an

         25  interesting sexist thing, because I believe that
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          2  when Tabbatha Waldron, that is the one that was

          3  convicted, went for an OB/GYN appointment to a

          4  clinic, when she was about six months pregnant, with

          5  the father, or the young man who fathered the baby,

          6  but it is not a baby yet, then you fall into a

          7  problem with abortion, it's not a baby at six

          8  months. Anyway -- it's a fetus. Told her that he had

          9  another girlfriend and the girlfriend was pregnant,

         10  so that she was expecting at the same time that

         11  Tabbatha was expecting, and Tabbatha got very angry

         12  and upset and said she wanted to have an abortion at

         13  the clinic, she was heard to say that. She then

         14  later gave birth, and the question during the trial

         15  was, well, couldn't you tell the baby -- and she was

         16  nursing the baby, and that was further complicated

         17  because she had had breast reduction surgery when

         18  she was 16 at Harlem Hospital and no one had told

         19  her that breast reduction surgery made it very

         20  difficult to nurse, if not impossible. And even

         21  while she was in the hospital she was pumping her

         22  breasts for the milk and they were throwing it out

         23  because she had a difficult delivery and she was on

         24  antibiotics and they didn't want to give the baby

         25  the milk with antibiotics in it, so she pumped and
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          2  then they would throw away the milk without

          3  measuring it, which they would have been able to see

          4  that she wasn't really giving an adequate amount.

          5                 But anyway, so she went home with the

          6  baby, she nursed the baby. There was nobody there to

          7  see the nursing. Her mother thought everything was

          8  going all right, the baby didn't cry, he wasn't

          9  hungry, and the baby eventually died. I guess the

         10  question was did the baby die only from malnutrition

         11  or did the baby die from other things, and the baby,

         12  when the pictures were taken in the morgue, was

         13  very, very thin. The question was how could you not

         14  have known the baby wasn't getting nourished. And

         15  taking that to the DA's offices, it seems to me they

         16  believed from the testimony of the father of the

         17  baby that she didn't want to have this baby, she

         18  wanted to abort it, that she intentionally starved

         19  the baby. And that was the original charge.

         20                 And so it had a very I think sexist

         21  underlying prosecution and decision that went into

         22  it.

         23                 But she also didn't -- obviously

         24  there were many parts. I mean, she went home from

         25  the hospital without a plan from the hospital. She
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          2  evidently didn't have an appointment for earlier

          3  than six weeks to go back to go to a pediatrician,

          4  and I think it all points up lots of holes, so it is

          5  more complicated.

          6                 And when she went she didn't have a

          7  Medicaid card and HIP didn't want to give her -- to

          8  see the baby. She finally went because everybody

          9  said the baby is so thin.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: The majority of

         11  the cases that you deal with, will you say that the

         12  cases get resolved in a month? Two months?

         13                 MS. MOREL: It takes more than that.

         14                 We have another case that took

         15  sixteen months to be solved, another one 18 months,

         16  and I have another one in the program that we have

         17  been fighting with the Income Maintenance Center for

         18  four months now. The baby was born, the mother was

         19  on Medicaid, the mother submitted all of the

         20  paperwork, birth certificate and everything and the

         21  child hasn't received a Medicaid card yet.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then how many

         23  cases do you have roughly?

         24                 MS. REINIGER: Three-hundred families.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And the 300
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          2  families who have new babies, how many of them get a

          3  Medicaid in a month?

          4                 MS. MOREL: I can't say that.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Twenty?

          6                 MS. MOREL: Less than half.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Forty?

          8                 MS. MOREL: Less than half.

          9                 MS. REINIGER: Less than half, so it

         10  would be 150.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: So, 150 of

         12  those babies get the Medicaid, 150 don't. It is due

         13  to what? To you, to the person --

         14                 MS. MOREL: The policies, the center.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Are all of your

         16  babies delivered at Columbia Presbyterian?

         17                 MS. MOREL: Yes.

         18                 MS. REINIGER: Just about.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So they

         20  register those babies' births right away?

         21                 MS. MOREL: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So isn't it

         23  incumbent upon the mother to go to a Medicaid center

         24  --

         25                 MS. MOREL: But they do go.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: They make them

          3  do both? I mean, my understanding from the

          4  Commissioner was that either the hospital registers

          5  the baby or the mother has to go and register the

          6  baby.

          7                 MS. MOREL: I wasn't clear about what

          8  she said about that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Yes. What do

         10  you think, Deborah?

         11                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: I am pretty sure

         12  that what happens is the hospital registers the

         13  baby, but the mother still has to provide a certain

         14  amount of paperwork. And usually on every postpartum

         15  floor, at least in hospitals that serve public

         16  patients, or clinic patients or whatever you want to

         17  call them, there are social workers who see every

         18  single postpartum patient and assess whether they

         19  need social work services or not, and social work

         20  services does include applying for Medicaid for the

         21  baby.

         22                 It also depends on the kind of clinic

         23  they go to. Our clinic happens to be really good. We

         24  have a really good case worker and she makes sure

         25  that these women get their paperwork in around eight
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          2  months gestation so that when the hospital confirms

          3  the birth of the child, the paperwork is done, and

          4  it still takes awhile for the card to come in but we

          5  also see the patients, even though they don't have a

          6  card.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Can you give us

          8  an estimate on how long it takes?

          9                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: No. Because since we

         10  see the patients on the assumption that that baby is

         11  going to get the Medicaid, I never really keep track

         12  of when the Medicaid card comes because it is not a

         13  problem.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Because you

         15  continue serving them?

         16                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: Right. It just

         17  doesn't come up.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: How much later

         19  does the hospital get reimbursed?  How much later do

         20  you get your money?

         21                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: Oh, a year. Six

         22  months, a year. Medicaid is very slow to reimburse.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And do you,

         24  when your mother and baby are discharged, are they

         25  given an appointment with a pediatrician?
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          2                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: Every mother is

          3  discharged with a hospital appointment, with a

          4  pediatrician or a clinic, within two weeks.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: You know, what

          6  is fascinating on this is that the assumption is not

          7  that a baby is going to be born, the assumption is

          8  let's assume that when the baby is born and has a

          9  name, after that then we will deal with that.

         10  Although they are paying for the delivery of the

         11  baby, the preparation of the baby.

         12                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: But since you need

         13  their first set of vaccines in two weeks, you got to

         14  go.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So what do you

         16  think we should be doing?

         17                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: Oh, God --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: I mean, I do

         19  know under PCAP it is relatively seemless.

         20                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: PCAP is good.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Why aren't all

         22  of these babies in PCAP?

         23                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: PCAP is only for

         24  pregnant women. PCAP is Medicaid coverage for

         25  prenatal care and one month after the birth of the
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          2  baby for the mother, up to 185 percent of the

          3  federal poverty level.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So that is what

          5  I was asking her before.

          6                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: Yes, I know.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: If a woman is

          8  on Medicaid before she becomes pregnant and then if

          9  she becomes pregnant then she is not eligible for

         10  PCAP.

         11                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: Well, she doesn't

         12  need it. It's not an issue, it is redundant service.

         13  But most people, a lot of women don't start the

         14  Medicaid process until they get pregnant because

         15  most of these women are young and they are healthy

         16  and they don't need medical care, they go to ER when

         17  they have a fever, so be it, and they apply for

         18  PCAP. And PCAP is easy because PCAP, every clinic

         19  that serves pregnant women has a PCAP facilitator in

         20  the clinic. It is mandated. And PCAP mandates all

         21  kinds of other services, including social work

         22  service, you have to be able to refer to psychiatry,

         23  you have to have obstetricians and midwives, and

         24  then there is a whole long, huge list of PCAP

         25  requirements. But the workers in the clinics, they
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          2  know every patient.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So in a way it

          4  is better for a woman to be in PCAP than just to be

          5  on straight Medicaid?

          6                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: Yes. But PCAP ends a

          7  month after you deliver.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Then what is

          9  the Children Health Plus?

         10                 MS. REINIGER: That is the gap between

         11  Medicaid and private insurance.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: I see. So that

         13  is to continue PCAP or something?

         14                 MS. REINIGER: Well, yes, if income is

         15  too high for Medicaid but is not getting private

         16  insurance, Child Health Plus is supposed to pick it

         17  up.

         18                 We also have to consider our huge

         19  immigrant population here in the City, of which many

         20  women from Washington Heights are immigrants who

         21  getting that documentation together, in fact often

         22  they personally are not eligible but their children

         23  are.

         24                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: PCAP is different.

         25  You don't have to be a citizen of the United States
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          2  to get PCAP.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Can you be an

          4  undocumented?

          5                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: Yes, absolutely.

          6  Actually, people come to New York City to deliver

          7  their babies because of that.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: That's very

          9  bad.

         10                 DR. OTTENHEIMER: That is very bad,

         11  but it is better than the alternative I think.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I have an issue

         13  with responsibilities and who is responsible for

         14  what, and I think that we need to know who is

         15  responsible for the actions that people take. You

         16  know, I have compassion and I am aggressive in my

         17  politics, but the issue of responsibility bothers me

         18  very much. It is not right for somebody else to go

         19  into a particular state --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Women used to

         21  go to Puerto Rico, didn't they, for abortions?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: In Puerto Rico

         23  there was a lot of people that used to go there for

         24  abortions.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Right.
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          2                 Well, we really thank you guys very

          3  much. I think what the next step is is to have a

          4  joint hearing with the Health Committee to talk to

          5  the Health Department and then to make some

          6  recommendations.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you very

          8  much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Is there anyone

         10  else who wishes to testify?

         11                 (No response.)

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Then this

         13  meeting is adjourned. Thank you very much.

         14                 (Hearing concluded at 3:20 p.m.)
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